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 문법 해설 
[Unit 1] Infinitives
█ Part A Causative Verbs and Infinitive Forms

	사역동사

	사역동사는 누가 (또는 무엇이) 사람이나 물건으로 하여금 무슨 일을 하도록 하든가, 시키든가, 허락함을 서술한다.

	To-부정사와 함께 쓰이는 사역동사

	cause, get, force, allow, ask, tell, encourage, persuade, convince, help*는 목적어와 to-부정사가 뒤따른다.
	They persuaded us to join their group.

She convinced me to leave early.

I asked the waiter to bring a menu.

	원형부정사와 함께 쓰이는 사역동사

	let, make, have, help*는 목적어와 원형부정사가 뒤따른다.
	My parents did not let me go to the rock concert.

That food made my stomach feel sick.

The teacher had me do the sum on the board.

	*help 다음에는 to-부정사와 원형부정사가 다 허용된다.
· I helped them to move the sofa. (O)

· I helped them move the sofa. (O)


█ Part B To-Infinitives as Subjects

	to-부정사 주어

	to-부정사구는 문장의 주어로 쓰일 수 있다. to-부정사구가 길 때는 문장은 it로 시작하고 부정사구는 문장의 끝에 온다.
	It is unusual to see an owl during the day.

It takes time to learn a new language.

	to-부정사는 주어를 가질 수 있다. 부정사의 주어는 그 앞에 for가 온다.
	It is worthwhile for people to invest their savings.

It is unusual for owls to come out during the day.

	to-부정사는 종종 take와 cost의 뒤에 온다. 이들 동사는 간접목적어를 가질 수도 있고 갖지 않을 수도 있다.
	How long did it take to do the homework?

How long did it take her to do the homework?

It cost me a lot of money to get a good tutor.

	to-부정사로 문장을 시작할 수 있다. 이 경우에는 문장에 더욱 격식적 느낌을 주도록 보통 짧은 부정사구로 시작한다.
	To ski takes strong legs and good balance.

To be kind to others is important.

	*부정사를 부정하기 위하여서는 to 앞에 not를 두라.
· In a fire, it’s important not to panic.


█ Part C To-Infinitives in Predicates

	술부의 to-부정사

	to-부정사는 문장 안에서 여러 다른 위치에 놓일 수 있다.

	to-부정사는 계사인 be, seem, appear의 뒤에 주격보어로 올 수 있다.
	Michael seems to know a lot about literature.

The city appears to have a problem with pollution.

	to-부정사는 어떤 동사들 뒤에 직접목적어로서 올 수 있다. 이들 동사는 다음과 같다: begin, choose, claim, decide, expect, learn, like, love, manage, offer, plan, prefer, promise, refuse, start, try, want, wish.
	They wanted to stay for a few extra days.

We are learning to speak Italian.

	to-부정사는 어떤 동사들 뒤의 목적어로 올 수 있다. 이들 동사는 다음과 같다: ask, convince, expect, help, order, persuade, remind, teach, tell.
	Parents teach kids to say please and thank you.

I expected them to be home before midnight.

	to-부정사는 어떤 형용사 뒤에 올 수 있다. 이들 형용사는 다음과 같다: amazed, ashamed, disappointed, excited, glad, happy, likely, pleased, ready, reluctant, sad, shocked, sorry, surprised, upset, willing.
	He will be disappointed not to see you.

I’m not quite ready to leave the house yet.


█ Part D To-Infinitives with Too, Enough, and In Order
	Too, Enough, In Order와 함께 하는 to-부정사

	too much/many + 명사* + to-부정사는 일정한 양이 어떤 목적을 위하여 과도함을 보여준다. (즉 어떤 사람이 원하거나 좋아할 것보다 더 많이 있다.)
*그 명사는 부정사의 목적어 일 수도 있고 아닐 수도 있다.
	I have too much work to do today. (목적어)

(= I have to do too much work today.)

She has too many presents to buy. (목적어)

(= She has to buy too many presents.)

There is too much noise to talk here. (목적어가 아님)

I’ve failed too many quizzes to get a good grade.

(목적어가 아님)

	too + 형용사/부사 + to-부정사는 형용사/부사가 서술하는 자질이 어떤 목적을 위하여 과도함을 보여준다.
	I’m too tired to do any work.

They’re too busy to have any hobbies.

	enough + 명사 + to-부정사는 일정 양이 어떤 목적을 위하여 충분함을 보여준다.
(즉 그 양이나 자질이 더 이상 필요하지 않다.)
	There aren’t enough plates to serve everyone.

We had enough time to finish the project.

	형용사/부사 + enough + to-부정사는 어떤 양이나 자질이 어떤 목적을 위하여 충분함을 보여준다.
	He’s not fast enough to play for the team.

Do you practice often enough to improve?

	in order + to-부정사는 목적을 보여준다.
to-부정사는 그 자체만으로 목적을 보여줄 수 있다.
콤마를 사용하여, 목적 부정사가 주절 앞에 올 수 있다. 그것은 또한 주절 뒤에 올 수도 있다. 그것이 주절의 뒤에 올 때는 콤마가 없다.
	In order to pass the test, I studied hard.

I studied hard in order to pass the test.

To avoid traffic, my father drove down Oak Street.

My father drove down Oak Street to avoid traffic.


[Unit 2] Gerunds
█ Part A Gerunds and Common Verbs with Gerunds

	동명사와 동명사를 동반한 일반 동사

	동명사는 주어의 역할을 할 수 있다.

동명사는 보어의 역할을 할 수도 있다.
많은 동사의 뒤에는 동명사가 올 수 있다.
	Being polite is important.

Winning money is good luck!

Your job is tidying the house.

My mother quit smoking last year.

My father suggested giving them up.

	동명사가 뒤따르는 동사: advise, appreciate, avoid, consider, delay, deny, discuss, enjoy, finish, go, imagine, keep, mind, permit, practice, quit, recommend, stop, suggest

	go + 동명사의 형태는 보통 행동을 서술하는데 쓰인다.
	I often go bowling on the weekend.

Afterwards, I usually go shopping.

	일반적인 go + 동명사의 표현: go bowling, go camping, go fishing, go hiking, go jogging, go sailing, go sightseeing, go skiing, go swimming


█ Part B Infinitives and Gerunds

	부정사와 동명사

	일부 동사들은 그 뒤에 부정사나 동명사가 올 수 있다. 대부분의 경우에, 문장의 뜻은 변하지 않는다.
	I prefer to study at home.

I prefer studying at home.

She can’t stand to see anyone cry.

She can’t stand seeing anyone cry.

	의미에 영향을 주지 않고 뒤에 동명사나 부정사가 올 수 있는 동사: attempt, begin, continue, hate, like, love, neglect, prefer, (can’t) stand, start

	부정사와 동명사가 forget, regret, remember, stop 동사 뒤에 올 때는 뜻이 변한다.
	I’m annoyed because I forgot to watch my favorite show.

I’ll never forget watching my little brother walk for the first time.

We regret to tell you that our store will be closing.

She regrets telling Eric her secret because she’s afraid he’ll tell others.

Please remember to lock the door when you leave.

Why is the door locked? I don’t remember locking it.

The teacher told us to stop talking and listen.

On our way home, we stopped to talk to our neighbor.


█ Part C Gerunds after Prepositions

	전치사 뒤에 오는 동명사

	전치사 뒤에 동사를 쓸 때는 언제나 동명사를 쓰라.
	My father wasn’t sure about buying a new car.

(. . . about to buy . . .가 아님 )

They were very happy after finishing their summer tests. (. . . after to finish . . .가 아님 )

They were pleased about finishing their tests.

	전치사 뒤에는 부정사를 쓸 수 없다. 다음 표현들에서 to는 부정사의 일부가 아니라 전치사 이다: be used to, be opposed to, look forward to, contribute to.
	I look forward to going with you.

I want to go with you.


█ Part D Special Expressions with Gerunds

	동명사를 가진 특수 표현들

	동명사는 어떤 표현들에서는 명사의 바로 뒤에 올 수 있다.
	We had difficulty understanding the teacher.

We wasted time searching for the car keys.

Their dog had great fun chasing cars.

	동명사가 뒤따르는 표현들: have a difficult time, have difficulty, have experience, have fun, have a good time, have a hard time, have a problem/problems, have trouble, spend time, waste time, there’s no point.


[Unit 3] Participles
█ Part A Present and Past Participles

	현재분사와 과거분사

	분사는 형용사로 쓰이는 동사의 한 형태이다. 분사는 명사와 대명사를 수식한다.

	현재분사는 -ing의 어미로 끝이 난다. 현재분사는 능동적 의미를 가지고 있어, 진행되고 있는 행동이나 조건 또는 상태를 보여준다.
	The singing parrot amazed everyone.

Traveling long distances can be very tiring.

	과거분사는 보통 -ed/-d, -en, -t, -n의 어미로 끝이 난다. 과거분사는 수동적 의미를 가지고 있고, 행동이나 조건 또는 상태의 완성을 암시한다.
	The broken vase was a big mystery.

I finally found my lost wallet under the couch.

We can all see the window is smashed.

	분사는 명사나 대명사를 수식하는 절을 이끌 수 있다.

	현재분사절은 진행되고 있는 행동이나 조건 또는 상태를 보여준다.
	Being busy with her homework, Julia couldn’t answer your email.

Feeling nervous, I walked onto the stage.

	과거분사절은 행동이나 조건 또는 상태의 완성을 암시한다.
	Located on a hill, the hotel has a fine view of the city.

Viewed through a telescope, the surface of the moon is clearly covered in craters.

	분사절을 부정하려면, 분사 앞에 not를 놓으라.
	Not being busy, I had time to relax.

Not located on a hill, the hotel has a boring view.

	분사절로 문장이 시작되면, 그것은 주절의 주어를 수식해야 한다.

· Looking out the window, we saw the beautiful sunset. (O)

· Looking out the window, the sunset was beautiful. (X)


█ Part B Perfect Participle Clauses

	완료분사 절

	완료분사 절은 다음 경우에 같은 주어를 가진 절과 결합할 수 있다.
a. 한 행동이 다음 행동의 시작 이전에 끝났을 때

b. 한 행동이나 상태가 다른 것의 이유나 설명을 제공할 때
	I ate a sandwich and then opened a bottle of orange soda.

→Having eaten a sandwich, I opened a bottle of orange soda. (한 행동이 다른 행동 이전에 끝이 남)

I hadn’t been working there very long. I still had a lot to learn.

→Not having worked there for very long, I still had a lot to learn. (행동이 이유를 제공함)

	완료분사 절은 능동태와 수동태에 다 쓸 수 있다.
능동태를 만들려면, having + 과거분사를 결합하라.

수동태를 만들려면, having been + 과거분사를 결합하라.
	Having washed, I went to bed.

Having been washed, my sweater was clean.

Having cooked, we sat down to eat.

Not having been cooked, the noodles were hard.


[Unit 4] Perfect Tenses
█ Part A Simple Past vs. Present Perfect

	단순과거와 현재완료

	단순과거
과거---------------------------현재--------------------------미래
                             ------

현재완료
과거---------------------------현재--------------------------미래
                            -----------------------→

	현재완료는 기간이 끝나지 않았을 때 쓰인다.
단순과거는 행동이 완성되었음을 보여준다.
	I have eaten three bowls of ice cream today. 
(아직도 더 많이 먹을 수 있다.)

I ate three bowls of ice cream today.

	현재완료는 최근에 일어난 것에 대한 소식을 가리킬 때 쓰일 수 있다.
단순과거는 그렇게 최근이 아닌 것에 대한 소식을 전할 때 쓰인다.
	Peter has lost his coat again.

Peter lost his coat again.

	현재완료는 구체적이지 않거나 정확하지 않은 시간을 가리킬 때 쓰인다.
단순과거는 과거 행동의 시간이 알려졌을 때 쓰인다.
	Claire has already spent all her money.

Claire spent all her money last night.

	현재완료와 더불어, for와 since는 어떤 행동이 완성되지 않았음을 보여주기 위하여 쓰인다.

단순과거와 더불어, for는 완성된 행동에 쓰인다.
	She has worked there for three years.

She has worked there since 2010.

(그곳에서 아직도 일하고 있다.)

She worked there for three years.

(그곳에서 더 이상 일하지 않는다.)


█ Part B Present Perfect Progressives

	현재완료진행

	현재완료진행은 과거에 시작한 행동이 현재 아직도 진행 중임을 보여주기 위하여 쓰인다.

	과거---------------------------현재--------------------------미래
                            -----------------------→

	현재완료진행은 has/have been + 현재분사를 써서 만든다.
	I have been studying this for three hours!

	현재완료진행은 때때로 How long have…?라는 질문에 답하기 위하여 쓰인다.
	How long have we been waiting for the bus?

→ We have been waiting for more than twenty minutes.

	부정형은 단순히 been 앞에 not을 두어 만든다.
	I have not been drinking enough water this week.

She hasn’t been to Spain before.

	의문형은 (의문사) + have/has + (주어) + been + 현재분사를 써서 만든다.
	Have you been talking to Jane lately?

How long has he been working here?

Who has been eating this chocolate?

	현재완료진행으로 묻는 질문에 답하기 위하여 for와 since가 자주 쓰인다.
	How long have you been taking lessons?

→ I have been taking lessons since March.

→ I have been taking lessons for three months.


█ Part C Past Perfect

	과거완료

	과거완료는 어떤 행동이 과거에 완료되고 다른 행동 이전에 일어났을 때 쓰인다.

	과거------------------X---------현재--------------------------미래
                            -------

	과거완료는 had + 과거분사로 만든다.
	I had beaten the goalkeeper, but then I kicked the ball wide!

I had just finished my coffee when my friend arrived.

I had seen that movie three times before it came out on DVD.

	과거완료는 어떤 행동이 과거에 일어나서 한 동안 지속되다가 과거의 어떤 시점에서 끝났음을 보여주기 위하여 쓰인다.
	They had dated for several years before his family moved away.


█ Part D Past Perfect Progressive

	과거완료진행

	과거완료진행은 어떤 행동이 과거의 일정기간에 일어났고 다른 행동 이전에 일어났을 때 쓰인다. 종종 다른 과거의 행동이 과거완료진행을 개입한다. 

	과거------------------X---------현재--------------------------미래
                            -----------→

	과거완료진행은 had been + 현재분사로 만든다.
	We had been arguing all evening because someone lost the tickets.

	부정형은 not을 had와 been 사이에 놓아서 만든다.
	I had not/hadn’t been sleeping long when the phone woke me.

	의문형은 (의문사) + had + (주어) + been + 현재분사를 사용하여 만든다.
	Had they been waiting long when we arrived?

How long had he been playing before he got hurt?

Who had been using this computer before I got here?

	이 형식은 간접화법에서도 쓰인다. 그것은 직접화법에서 과거진행과 현재완료진행의 동등표현이다.*

	*Unit 8의 직접화법과 간접화법을 보라.


█ Part E Adverbs with Perfect Tenses

	완료시제를 가진 부사들

	완료시제와 더불어 쓰이는 부사들이 많이 있다.

	already는 어떤 행동이 완료되었거나 다른 행동 이전에 완료되었음을 의미한다. already는 문장에서 과거분사 앞이나 문장의 끝에 쓰인다.
	He had already finished the meal.

I have told you the answer already!

	never는 “not ever / at no time”을 뜻한다. never는 과거분사 앞이나 (첫째) 조동사 뒤에 쓰인다.
	I have never eaten snails, and I will never eat them!

	so far는 현재에 이르는 기간을 가리킨다. so far는 보통 문장의 처음 또는 끝에 쓰인다.
	So far, I haven’t heard any good singers.

I haven’t heard any good singers so far.

	still은 현재에 이르는 기간을 가리키고 보통 부정문에 쓰인다. still은 문장에서 have 앞에 온다.
	You still haven’t sent those letters.

I still haven’t been able to find a job.

	yet는 현재까지의 기간을 가리키고 부정문이나 의문문에 쓰인다. yet는 문장의 끝이나 부정문에서 not 다음에 온다.
	Have you seen the mailman yet?

→ No, I haven’t seen him yet.

→ No, I have not yet seen him.


[Unit 5] Modal Auxiliaries

█ Part A Expressing Ability
	능력 나타내기

	can, could, be able to는—어떤 사람이 어떤 일을 할 수 있는지 또는 없는지의—능력을 표현하기 위하여 쓰인다.

	can, could, and be able to는 현재시제에 쓰인다.
	We can help you carry that box.

I can’t understand this problem.

Can you help me with this?

	could, could not/couldn’t는 can, can’t의 과거형이다.
	John could pick up the big box easily.

I couldn’t find a nice present for my mother.

Could you speak English when you were ten?

	be able to, not be able to, unable to는 be의 시제를 바꿈으로써 어떤 시제에서도 쓸 수 있다.
	She is able to read Chinese quite well.

We were not able to agree on a destination.

I will be unable to meet you tomorrow.

Was she able to finish the project?


█ Part B Polite Requests

	공손한 요청

	might, would, could, may, will, can은 공손한 요청에 쓰인다.

	very polite

↑
|

|

↓

polite
	might
	Might* I sit in this chair?

	
	could
	Could you direct me to the bathroom, please**?

	
	would
	Would you please** close that window? It is getting cold.

	
	may
	May* I borrow your calculator for a moment, please?

	
	can
	Can you tell me when the next bus arrives?

	
	will
	Will you pass me that notebook, please?

	*might를 이렇게 쓰는 일은 대단히 드물다. 또한 might와 may는 의문문에서 주어 you와 더불어 결코 쓰이지 않는다.

	**please는 본동사의 앞이나 문장의 끝에 올 수 있다. 문장의 끝에 올 때는, 그 앞에 콤마가 온다.


█ Part C Necessity and Obligation

	필요와 의무

	have to, have got to, must는 모두 필요와 강한 의무를 표현하기 위하여 쓰인다. have to와 have got to는 일상회화에서 훨씬 흔하게 쓰인다.

	have to*
부정형 (=필요하지 않음)

의문형
	I have to polish my shoes before we go to the wedding.
You don’t have to polish your shoes because they’re brand-new.

Do you have to polish your shoes?

	have got to*
No 부정형

의문형**
	He has got to clean his room before our parents get back.
-

Have I got to clean my room?

	must
부정형 (=필요 not to; can’t)

의문형
	My father must be on time for this meeting.
He must not / mustn’t be late, or he’ll be in trouble.

Must he be on time?

	*have to에는 축약형태가 없다. 그러나 have got to는 흔히 축약된다: I’ve got to / You’ve got to / She’s got to / We’ve got to / They’ve got to
**have got to는 의문문에서는 거의 쓰이지 않는다.


█ Part D   Advice and Suggestions

	조언과 제안

	Had better, should, ought to, why don’t, let’s, shall은 조언과 제안에 쓰인다.

	조언
제안
	had better / had better not

(만일 조언이 뒤따르지 않으면, 나쁜 결과를 암시한다)
	He had better / He’d better close the windows before it starts raining.
	Had he better finish that exercise now?

	
	should / should not
	You should help your brother with his homework.
	Should I feed the dog?

	
	Ought to (부정문과 의문문에서는 보통 쓰이지 않는다.)
	You ought to move that sofa over there. It would look much nicer.
	--------------- 

	
	Why don’t . . . ?
(제안 또는 조언)
	   ---------------
	Why don’t we/you go to the beach this weekend?

	
	Let’s / Let’s not
	Let’s go to the mall and try get chocolate milk shakes.
	---------------

	
	Shall . . . ?  (부정문에서는 보통 쓰이지 않는다.)
	----------------
	Shall we go to that new restaurant tonight?


[Unit 6] Noun Clauses

█ Part A Noun Clauses with Wh- Question Words

	Wh-의문사를 가진 명사절

	의문사는 삽입된 명사절을 이끄는데 쓰일 수 있다.*

	Do you know when summer vacation starts?

	He didn’t say where he left his keys.

	명사절은 명사와 같은 역할을 한다. 명사절은 주어나 동사의 직접목적어가 된다.

	What John said was unfair. (주어)

	I want to see which flavors of ice cream they have available. (직접목적어)

	*명사절은 의문문 어순을 쓰지 않고 평서문 어순을 쓴다.
· I know where he got the skateboard. (O)

· I know where did he get the skateboard. (X)

다른 의문사들 – why, who(m), how, whose


█ Part B Noun Clauses with That, If, and Whether

	that, if, whether를 가진 명사절

	명사절은 that로 시작할 수 있다. 많은 경우에, that는 생략된다.*

	that 사용
	We decided that going to the beach was a bad idea.

	that 생략
	We knew it would be difficult to win the game.

	흔히 that절이 뒤따르는 동사: agree, assume, believe, decide, forget, guess, hear, hope, know, learn, predict, read, realize, recall, think

	that을 가진 명사절은 자주 어떤 형용사나 명사 뒤에 온다.

	I’m sure (that) you’ll play well in the championship game.

There’s a small chance (that) we’ll lose the game.

	that 절이 흔히 뒤따르는 형용사: afraid, excited, disappointed, hopeful, pleased, sorry, sure
that 절이 흔히 뒤따르는 명사: belief, chance, knowledge, possibility, reason, risk

	if과 whether는 명사절을 이끌 수 있다.

	if가 명사절을 이끌면, or not은 문장의 끝에만 쓰일 수 있다.
	I don’t know if we have time (or not).

I’d like to know if it will rain (or not).

	whether가 명사절을 이끌면, or not은 whether의 바로 다음이나 문장 끝에 쓰일 수 있다.
	I don’t know whether (or not) we have time.

I’d like to know whether it will rain (or not).

	*명사절이 주어일 때, that는 생략될 수 없다.
· That cats don’t like to swim is a well-known fact. (O)

· Cats don’t like to swim is a well-known fact. (X)


[Unit 7] Adjective Clauses

█ Part A Restrictive Clauses

	제한절

	형용사절은 명사를 수식하는 종속절이다. 관계사절은 관계대명사(that, who, whom, which)로 시작한다. 관계대명사는 관계사절에서 각기 다른 기능을 가질 수 있다.

	주어로서 관계대명사
	I want the sweater. It is on sale. →I want the sweater that is on sale.

I have a friend. She loves classical music. →I have a friend who loves classical music.

	목적어로서 관계대명사
	This is the sweater. I bought it. →This is the sweater that I bought.

Mr. Taft is the teacher. All the students like him best. →Mr. Taft is the teacher whom all the students like best.

	제한절은 보통 관계대명사 that 또는 who/whom로 시작한다. 제한절은 그것이 가리키는 명사를 제한하거나 명시한다. 제한절은 그것이 가리키는 것을 한정하기 때문에 문장의 의미에 극히 중요하다.
	Bob has two sisters. One of them is married.

The sister who is married lives in Australia.
(이 경우에 어느 자매가 Australia에서 사는가 하는 정보가 중요하다.)

	제한절은 콤마로 분리하지 않는다.


█ Part B Non-restrictive Clauses

	비제한절

	비제한절은 그것이 가리키는 것을 한정하지 않기 때문에 문장의 의미에 중요하지 않다. 비제한절을 제거해도 나머지 절의 의미는 변하지 않을 것이다.

	비제한절은 관계대명사 which나 who*로 시작한다. 그것은 명사에 대한 정보를 더한다.
	Ann has one brother and one sister. Her sister, who is married, is a lawyer.

이 경우에, who is married라는 정보는 문장의 의미에 중요하지 않다. 그것은 그저 잉여정보일 뿐이다.

	비제한절은 콤마로 분리된다. 비제한절에서는 관계대명사가 생략될 수 없다.
*who는 사람을 가리키고, which는 나머지 모든 명사를 가리킨다.


[Unit 8] Direct and Indirect Speech

█ Part A Direct Speech

	직접화법

	직접화법의 구두점에 대한 많은 규칙들이 있다.

	직접화법 앞에 있는 said (또는 그 대신에 쓰이는 낱말) 뒤에는 언제나 콤마를 찍으라.
	John said, “I feel much better today.”

	마침표, 느낌표, 물음표는 따옴표 안에 그대로 있다. 영국영어에서는 마침표가 따옴표 밖에 있다.
	John said, “That was very exciting!”

	따옴표 안의 첫 글자는 대문자로 쓰라.
	John asked, “What time will we finish?”

	둘 또는 그 이상의 문장이 있을 때는, 같은 따옴표 안에 넣어라.
	John said, “I don’t want to play soccer today.

Shall we go to the basketball court?”

	주어와 화법동사(say, ask, explain, 등등)는 직접화법 뒤에 올 수도 있다. 이 경우에는, 말은 (마침표가 아닌) 콤마나 느낌표 또는 물음표로 끝나야 한다.
· “I’m hungry,” the boy said.

· “I’m hungry!” the boy shouted.

· “Are you hungry?” the boy asked.


█ Part B Indirect Speech

	화법

	직접화법
	간접화법

	현재시제 직접화법은 과거시제 간접화법이 된다.

	She said, “I see him.”
	She said (that) she saw him.

	현재진행 직접화법은 과거진행 간접화법이 된다.

	She announced, “I am planning to quit the team.”
	She announced (that) she was planning to quit the team.

	과거단순 직접화법은 과거완료 간접화법이 된다.

	She said, “I slept very little.”
	She said (that) she had slept very little.

	만일 당신이 다른 장소에서 또는 다른 시점에 누가 한 말을 보고할 때, 문장은 그에 알맞게 조정되어야 한다.

· Yesterday, she said, “Today’s game is canceled.”

· She said yesterday’s game was canceled.

· On Monday, Greg said, “I have a big test today.”

· On Monday, Greg said he had a big test that day.


[Unit 9] Active and Passive Voices

█ Part A Active and Passive Voices

	능동태와 수동태

	수동태 문장은 능동태 문장의 목적어가 문장의 주어가 되는 것이다. 수동태는 be 동사와 과거분사를 써서 만들어진다.

	능동태
	My father didn’t park the car.

I walked to the store.

	(by가 행위자 또는 행동주임을 나타내는) 행위자를 가진 수동태
행위자가 없는 수동태
	The car was not parked by my father.

The mail is always delivered by our local mailman, Ken.

Thousands of children are born every day.

A lot of the cake was not eaten.

	수동태는 흔히 행동하는 이보다는 행동을 받는 이에게 초점을 더 두기 위하여 쓰인다.
· 수동태 - In government offices, a number of policies concerning the environment are being discussed by ministers.

· 능동태 - In government offices, ministers are discussing a number of policies concerning the environment.

그러나 산문쓰기에서 수동태를 지나치게 많이 쓰면 그 글은 비인격적이 될 수 있다.


█ Part B Active and Passive Forms

	능동형과 수동형

	여러 능동형과 수동형이 있다. 수동형은 언제나 동사 be와 과거분사를 쓴다.

	능동문에서는, 행위자가 문장의 주어이고 행동을 받는 것은 목적어이다.
	Simple past – We painted the house yesterday.

Simple present – We paint the house each year.

Present progressive – They are painting the house.

Present perfect – We have painted the house.

Past perfect - We had painted the house.

Future – We will paint the house tomorrow.

Modal – We should paint the house soon.

	수동문에서는, 행동을 받는 것이 문장의 주어이다.
	Simple past – The house was painted yesterday.

Simple present – The house is painted each year.

Present progressive – The house is being painted.

Present perfect - The house has been painted.

Past perfect – The house had been painted.

Future – The house will be painted tomorrow.

Modal – The house should be painted soon.


█ Part C Stative Passives

	상태수동

	상태수동형에서는, 과거분사가 형용사로 쓰이고 be 동사의 뒤에 온다.
상태수동은 일정기간에 걸쳐서 있었던 어떤 상태를 가리키는 반면에, 행동동사는 한 상태에서 다른 상태로 변화함을 가리키는 경향이 있다.

· 행동동사 - I damaged the car. (정상에서 파손으로 변화)

· 상태수동 - The car is damaged. (현재 파손된 상태로 있음)

	We are pleased with our team’s results in the World Cup.

Alan will be interested in that new science fiction movie.

They are worried about this weekend’s weather forecast.

	이 형태의 일반적 표현들: be bored by/with, be disappointed by/ with, be excited by, be interested in, be located in, be made of, be married to, be opposed to, be pleased about/with, be related to, be scared by/of, be tired from/of, be thought/believed that


[Unit 10] Prepositions with Nouns

█ Part A Nouns Followed by Prepositions

	전치사가 뒤따르는 명사들

	많은 명사들은 특별한 의미를 부여하기 위하여 전치사가 바로 뒤따른다.

	against – race against

for – reason for, respect for, request for, talent for

from – take orders from

in – belief in, take part in

into – insight into

of – advantage of, command of, example of, proof of, in favor of

on – make an attack on

to – advantage to, reaction to, response to

with – in love with, change places with

	예문:

There are many advantages to being tall.

Our class is in favor of new school rules!

These days, there is a big demand for good English teachers.

	다른 예들: attitude toward, cause of, danger of, example of, idea of, need for, purpose of, reaction to, reason for


█ Part B Prepositions Followed by Nouns

	명사가 뒤따르는 전치사들

	많은 여러 명사들은 특별한 의미를 지닌 구를 만들기 위하여 흔히 전치사가 그 앞에 온다.

	She called me by mistake.

We should get there on time.

We should go there by bus because it’s much faster.

He can’t sleep because he’s under pressure at work.

I didn’t break the lamp on purpose; it was an accident.

	다른 예들: by car, by chance, by mail, for fun, in demand, on sale, on purpose, under attack, under pressure, upon delivery, with respect (to), without delay, without regard
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